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Welcome to the Straightforward Elementary Companion!

What information does the Straightforward Elementary Companion give you?
• a word list of key words and phrases from each unit of Straightforward Elementary Student’s Book
• pronunciation of the key words and phrases
• translations of the key words and phrases
• sample sentences showing the key words and phrases in context
• a summary of the Language Reference from Straightforward Elementary Student’s Book

Abbreviations used in the Companion 

/I/ big fish /bIg fIS/
/i…/ green beans /gri…n bi…nz/
/U/ should look /SUd lUk/
/u…/ blue moon /blu… mu…n/
/e/ ten eggs /ten egz/
/´/ about mother /´baUt møD´(r)/
/‰…/ learn words /l‰…n w‰…dz/
/O…/ short talk /SO…t tO…k/
/œ/ fat cat /fœt kœt/
/ø/ must come /møst køm/

/A…/ calm start /kA…m stA…t/
/Å/ hot spot /hÅt spÅt/
/I´/ ear /I´(r)/
/eI/ face /feIs/
/U´/ pure /pjU´(r)/
/OI/ boy /bOI/
/´U/ nose /n´Uz/
/e´/ hair /he´(r)/
/aI/ eye /aI/
/aU/ mouth /maUT/

VOWELS AND DIPHTHONGS

/p/ pen /pen/
/b/ bad /bœd/
/t/ tea /ti…/
/d/ dog /dÅg/
/tS/ church /tS‰…tS/
/dZ/ jazz /dZœz/
/k/ cost /kÅst/
/g/ girl /g‰…l/
/f/          far                    /fa…(r)/
/v/ voice /vOIs/
/T/ thin /TIn/
/D/ then /Den/

/s/ snake /sneIk/
/z/ noise /nOIz/
/S/ shop /SÅp/
/Z/ measure /meZ´(r)/
/m/ make /meIk/
/n/ nine /naIn/
/N/ sing /sIN/
/h/ house /haUs/
/l/ leg /leg/
/r/ red /red/
/w/ wet /wet/
/j/ yes /jes/

CONSONANTS

(v) verb
(adj) adjective
(n) noun

(phr v) phrasal verb
(prep) preposition
(pron) pronoun

(n pl) plural noun
(C) countable
(U) uncountable
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Basics
International words

airport (n) We had a terrible time at the airport … our bags were mixed up.

bus (n) A bus is a large public vehicle that you pay to travel on and usually takes 

you short distances.

coffee (n) “Would you like a drink, Rob?” “Yes please, coffee.”

football (n) Football is a game in which two teams of eleven players kick a round ball 

and try to score goals.

hotel (n) “Hello Sam. Where are you?” “In the hotel.”

hospital (n) A hospital is a place where people go when they are ill or injured.

mobile phone (n) Rob’s mobile phone was just covered in water.

pizza (n) A pizza is a food that consists of flat round bread with tomato, cheese, 

vegetables, meat etc on it.

police (n) Police are people who try to catch criminals and make people obey the 

law.

sandwich (n) A sandwich is a light meal that consists of meat, cheese, egg etc between 

two pieces of bread.

taxi (n) A taxi is a car with a driver who you pay to take you to a particular place.

tea (n) “Would you like a drink?” “Tea, please.”

Numbers

one One is the number 1.

two Two is the number 2.

three Three is the number 3.

four Four is the number 4.

five Five is the number 5.

six Six is the number 6.

seven Seven is the number 7.

eight Eight is the number 8.

nine Nine is the number 9.

ten Ten is the number 10.

\"e´pO…t\

\bøs\

\"kÅfi\

\"fUtbO…l\

\h´U"tel\

\"hÅspItl\

\"m´UbaIl "f´Un\

\"pi…ts´\

\p´"li…s\

\"sœnwItS\

\"tœksi\

\ti…\

\wøn\

\tu…\

\Tri…\

\fO…\

\faIv\

\sIks\

\"sevn\

\eIt\

\naIn\

\ten\

Flughafen

Bus

Kaffee

Fußball

Hotel

Krankenhaus

Handy

Pizza

Polizei

Sandwich

Taxi

Tee

eins

zwei

drei

vier

fünf

sechs

sieben

acht

neun

zehn

1
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Classroom English

write (v) Listen and write the letters you hear.

listen to (v) Read and listen to the dialogue.

open (v) Open your books.

close (v) Close your books.

look at (v) Look at the pictures.

read (v) Read and listen to the dialogue.

talk (v) Talk to your partner.

book (n) Open your books, please.

word (n) Point to the words you hear.

partner (n) Work with a partner and ask questions.

picture (n) Look at the pictures.

text (n) Read the text.

CD (n) Listen to the CD.

Days of the week

Monday Monday is the day after Sunday and before Tuesday.

Tuesday Tuesday is the day after Monday and before Wednesday.

Wednesday Wednesday is the day after Tuesday and before Thursday.

Thursday Thursday is the day after Wednesday and before Friday.

Friday Friday is the day after Thursday and before Saturday.

Saturday Saturday is the day after Friday and before Sunday.

Sunday Sunday is the day after Saturday and before Monday.

Colours

black (adj) Black is the darkest colour, like the sky at night when there is no light.

blue (adj) Blue is the same colour as the sky on a clear, sunny day.

brown (adj) Brown is the same colour as wood or coffee.

green (adj) Green is the same colour as grass.

grey (adj) Something that is grey is between black and white in colour.

\raIt\

\"lIsn t´\

\"´Upn\

\kl´Uz\

\"lUk ´t\

\ri…d\

\tO…k\

\bUk\

\w‰…d\

\"pA…tn´\

\"pIktS´\

\tekst\

\si… "di…\

\"møndeI\

\"tSu…zdeI\

\"wenzdeI\

\"T‰…zdeI\

\"fraIdeI\

\"sœt´deI\

\"søndeI\

\blœk\

\blu…\

\braUn\

\gri…n\

\greI\

schreiben

(sich) anhören

öffnen

schließen

anschauen

lesen

sprechen; reden

Buch

Wort

Partner(in)

Bild

Text

CD

Montag

Dienstag

Mittwoch

Donnerstag

Freitag

Samstag

Sonntag

schwarz

blau

braun

grün

grau

2
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red (adj) Something that is red is the same colour as blood.

white(adj) Something that is white is the same colour as milk or snow.

yellow (adj) Something that is yellow is the same colour as the middle of an egg.

Things around you

apple (n) An apple is a hard, round fruit with a smooth green, yellow or red skin.

board (n) A board is a flat, wide surface on the wall that a teacher writes on.

CD player (n) A CD player is a piece of equipment used for playing CDs.

coin (n) A coin is a flat, round piece of metal used as money.

door (n) A door is the thing that you open when you want to enter or leave a 

building or room.

earring (n) An earring is a piece of jewellery that you wear on your ear.

ID card (n) An ID card is an official document or card that shows who you are.

key (n) A key is a small piece of metal used fro opening or locking a door.

pen (n) A pen is an object that you use for writing for drawing with ink.

photo (n) A photo is a picture of something that you make with a camera.

sweet (n) A sweet is a small piece of sweet food made with sugar.

TV (n) A TV is a piece of electrical equipment with a screen used for watching 

programmes.

wallet (n) A wallet is a small, flat case that people keep money and bank cards in.

window (n) A window is a piece of glass in a wall that you can see through.

\red\

\waIt\

\"jel´U\

\"œpl\

\bO…d\

\si… "di… pleI´\

\kOIn\

\dO…\

\"I´rIN\

\aI "di… kA…d\

\ki…\

\pen\

\"f´Ut´U\

\swi…t\

\ti… "vi…\

\"wÅlIt\

\"wInd´U\

rot

weiß

gelb

Apfel

Tafel

CD-Spieler

Münze

Tür

Ohrring

Personalausweis

Schlüssel

Stift; Kuli; Füller

Foto

Süßigkeit; Bonbon

TV; Fernseher

Brieftasche

Fenster

3
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Unit 1
Objects

alarm clock (n) “Is that your mobile phone?” “No, it’s my alarm clock.”

bottle of water (n) That’s my bottle of water.

camera (n) That’s my camera.

chair (n) A chair is a thing that you sit on.

computer (n) You use a computer to search the Internet and send email. 

desk (n) You sit at a desk to work.

glass (n) A glass of red wine, please.

newspaper (n) Do you read a newspaper?

paper (n) A pen and paper, please.

phone (n) Is that your mobile phone?

umbrella (n) An umbrella is something you hold over your head when it rains.

Countries and Nationalities

America (n) Los Angeles is a big city in America.

American (adj) Ben is from Los Angeles.  He’s American.

Argentina (n) Argentina is a big country in South America.

Argentinian (adj) She’s from Argentina. She’s Argentinian.

Australia (n) Nicole Kidman is from Sydney in Australia.

Australian (adj) Cate Blanchett and Nicole Kidman are Australian.

Brazil (n) Brazil’s flag is green, yellow and blue.

Brazilian (n) He’s from Brazil. He’s Brazilian.

Britain (n) I’m from Britain. I’m British.

British (adj) The British flag is red, white and blue.

Canada (n) Jim Carrey is from the province of Ontario in Canada.

Canadian (adj) “Is Jim Carrey Canadian?” “Yes, he is.”

China (n) China’s flag is red and yellow.

\´"lA…m klÅk\

\ÆbÅtl ´v "wO…t´\

\"kœm“´‘r´\

\tSe´\

\k´m"pju…t´\

\desk\

\glA…s\

\"nju…zpeIp´\

\"peIp´\

\f´Un\

\øm"brel´\

/´"merIk´/

/´"merIk´n/

/A…dZ´n"ti…n´/

/ÆA…dZ´n"tIni´n/

/Å"streIli´/

/Å"streIli´n/

\br´"zIl\

\br´"zIli´n\

\"brItn\

\"brItIS\

\"kœn´d´\

\k´"neIdi´n\

\"tSaIn´\

Wecker

Flasche Wasser

Kamera; Fotoapparat

Stuhl

Computer

Schreibtisch

Glas

Papier

Stift; Kuli

Telefon

Regenschirm

Amerika

Amerikaner(in); 

amerikanisch

Argentinien

Argentinier(in)

Australien

Australier(in)

Brasilien

Brasilianer(in)

Großbritannien

britisch

Kanada

Kanadier(in)

China

4
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Chinese (adj) The Chinese flag is red and yellow.

England (n) “Is Pierce Brosnan from England?” “No, he’s from Ireland.”

English (n) Mark’s first language is English.

France (n) France’s flag is red, white and blue.

French (adj) “Are you from France?” “Yes, I’m French.”

Germany (n) She’s from Germany.  She’s German.

German (adj) “Is Mark German?” “No, he’s English.”

Greece (n) Greece’s flag is blue and white.

Greek (adj) He’s from Greece.  He’s Greek.

Ireland (n) Pierce Brosnan is from Drogheda in Ireland.

Irish (adj) He’s Irish.  He’s from Drogheda, Ireland.

Italian (adj) The Italian flag is red, white and green.

Italy (n) Italy’s flag is red, white and green.

Japan (n) Japan’s flag is white and red.

Japanese (adj) I’m from Japan.  I’m Japanese.

Mexico (n) “Where are you from?” “I’m from Mexico.”

Mexican (adj) She’s from Mexico.  She’s Mexican.

Poland (n) Poland’s flag is red and white.

Polish (adj) The Polish flag is red and white.

Portugal (n) I’m from Portugal.  I’m Portuguese.

Portuguese (adj) People from Portugal are Portuguese.

Russia (n) Russia’s flag is red, white and blue.

Russian (adj) The Russian flag is red, white and blue.

Scotland (n) “Is Pierce Brosnan from Scotland?” “No, he’s from Ireland.”

Scottish (adj) “Is he Scottish?” “No, he’s Irish.”

Turkey (n) Turkey’s flag is red and white.

Turkish (adj) The Turkish flag is red and white.

Drinks

beer (n) A glass of beer, please.

coffee (n) “Would you like a coffee?” “No, thank you.”

(apple, orange) juice (n) “Orange juice or apple juice?” “Apple juice, please.”

tea (n) “Tea or coffee?” “Tea, please.”

(mineral) water (n) A bottle of mineral water, please.

wine (n) “Would you like red wine or white wine?” “White wine, please.”

\tSaI"ni…z\

/"INgl´nd/

/"INglIS/

\frA…ns\

\frentS\

\"dZ‰…m´ni\

\"dZ‰…m´n\

\gri…s\

\gri…k\

\"aI´l´nd\

\"aIrIS\

\I"tœlj´n\

\"It´li\

\dZ´"pœn\

\dZœp´"ni…z\

\"meksIk´U\

\"meksIk´n\

\"p´Ul´nd\

\"p´UlIS\

\"pO…tS´g(´)l\

\ÆpO…tS´"gi…z\

\"røS´\

\"røSn\

\"skÅtl´nd\

\"skÅtIS\

\"t‰…ki\

\"t‰…kIS\

\"bI´\

\"kÅfi\

\dZu…s\

\ti…\

\"wO…t´\

\waIn\

chinesisch

England

Englisch

Frankreich

Franzose/Französin

Deutschland

Deutsche(r)

Griechenland

Grieche/Griechin

Irland

Ire/Irin

Italien

italienisch

Japan

Japaner(in)

Mexiko

Mexikaner(in)

Polen

polnisch

Portugal

Portugiese/Portugiesin

Russland

russisch

Schottland

Schotte/Schottin

Türkei

türkisch

Bier

Kaffee

Saft (Apfel-; Orangen-)

Tee

(Mineral)wasser

Wein

5
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Other words & phrases

afternoon (n) We say “Good afternoon” between 12.00 pm and 6.00 pm.

age (n) “What age are the students?” “Between 13 and 55.”

bar (n) Sam isn’t in his room.  He’s in the bar.

country (n) America, Brazil, China and Russia are all big countries.

email (n) His email address is markamail.com.

evening (n) We say “Good evening” after 6.00 pm.

guide (n) I am your tour guide for the Explore London tour.

glass (n) A glass of mineral water, please.

invite (v) Explore London tours would like to invite you to a welcome party.

language (n) “What’s your first language?” “English.”

meet (v) “This is Alison. She’s new.” “Nice to meet you, Alison.”

morning (n) We say “Good morning” before 12.00 pm.

nationality (n) “What’s your nationality?” “I’m Mexican.”

new (adj) Alyssa’s new.  It’s her first day at work.

party (n) The welcome party is at the Regent Hotel, London on Sunday May 14.

practise (v) Choose a language you want to practise.

reception (n) Reception is the place in a hotel where people go when they first arrive.

room (n) Rob and Meg Sherman are in room 34.

telephone (n) Link with another student via email, video conference or telephone.

tour (n) Valerie is the tour guide for the Explore London tour.

Unit 2
Common verbs

drink (v) Carl and Anna drink red wine with lunch.

eat (v) I eat lots of French bread.

go (v) Sandra goes to an American university.

have (v) I have a big car and a big house.

live (v) “Where do they live?” “They live in a flat in Malaga.”

read (v) We read English newspapers.

speak (v) “Do you speak English?” “Yes, I do.”

\A…ft´"nu…n\

\eIdZ\

\bA…\

\"køntri\

\"i…meIl\

\"i…vnIN\

\gaId\

\gla…s\

\In"vaIt\

\"lœNgwIdZ\

\mi…t\

\"mO…nIN\

\nœS“´‘"nœlIti\

\nju…\

\"pA…ti\

\"prœktIs\

\rI"sepSn\

\ru…m\

\"telIf´Un\

\"tU´\

\drINk\

\i…t\

\g´U\

\hœv\

\lIv\

\ri…d\

\spi…k\

Nachmittag

Alter

Bar

Land

Email

Abend

(Reise) führer(in)

glas

einladen

Sprache

kennen lernen

Morgen

Nationalität; Staats-

angehörigkeit

neu

Party

üben

Empfang; Rezeption

Zimmer

Telefon

(Rund)reise; Tour

trinken

essen

gehen

haben

wohnen; leben

lesen

sprechen

6
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study (v) I study alone.

travel (v) If you travel, you go to other towns, cities and countries.

work (v) He works at the university.

Free time activities

go dancing When you go dancing, you go to a club or a disco to dance.

go shopping When you go shopping, you go to the shops to buy food, clothes etc.

go to a restaurant I don’t go to restaurants.

go to the cinema He goes to the cinema alone.

listen to music Does he listen to music?

play sports Men friends play sports and do things together.

watch TV Do you watch TV in the evening?

Family

aunt (n) Your aunt is the sister of your mother or father, or the wife of your uncle.

brother (n) “Who’s Fabio?” “He’s my brother.”

child (n) It is normal for a British woman to have her first child when she is 29.

cousin (n) Your cousin is the son or daughter of your aunt and uncle.

daughter (n) I have a daughter Emily, but she doesn’t live at home.

father (n) A thirty-seven-year old man doesn’t live with his mother and father.

grandchild (n) Your grandchild is the child of your son or daughter.

granddaughter (n) Your granddaughter is the daughter of your son or daughter.

grandfather (n) What about a family for Andy? I want to be a grandfather!

grandmother (n) Your grandmother is the mother of your father or mother.

grandparent (n) Your grandparent is the mother or father of your mother or father.

grandson (n) Your grandson is the son of your daughter or son.

husband (n) A woman’s husband is the man she is married to.

mother (n) 23% of children live with one parent, usually the mother.

parents (n) Andy still lives with his parents.

\"stødi\

\"trœvl\

\w‰…k\

\g´U "dA…nsIN\

\g´U "SÅpIN\

\Æg´U tU ´ "restrÅnt\

\Æg´U t´ D´ "sIn´m´\

\lIsn t´ "mju…zIk\

\pleI "spO…ts\

\ÆwÅtS ti… "vi…\

\A…nt\

\"brøD´\

\tSaIld\

\"køzn\

\"dO…t´\

\"fA…D´\

\"grœntSaIld\

\"grœndO…t´\

\"grœnfA…D´\

\"grœnmøD´\

\"grœnpe´r´nt\

\"grœnsøn\

\"høzb´nd\

\"møD´\

\"pe´r´nts\

studieren

reisen

arbeiten

tanzen gehen

einkaufen gehen

ein Restaurant besuchen

ins Kino gehen

Musik (an)hören

Sport treiben

fernsehen

Tante

Bruder

Kind

Vetter; Cousin/Cousine

Tochter

Vater

Enkel(in)

Enkelin

Großvater

Großmutter

Großeltern

Enkel

(Ehe)mann-g atte

Mutter

Eltern

7
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sister (n) Your sister is a girl who is the daughter of the same parents as you.

son (n) Andy is their only son.

uncle (n) Your uncle is the brother of your mother or father, or is married to your 

aunt.

Descriptions

age (n) “Middle-aged”, “old” and “young” are adjectives for age.

average-looking (adj) “Average-looking”, “beautiful” and “ugly” are adjectives for looks.

beautiful (adj) A beautiful woman is one who is very nice to look at.

dark (adj) He has dark hair and glasses.

fair (adj) Valerie has short fair hair and green eyes.

fat (adj) Bryan is fat and has black hair.

glasses (n) She has glasses.

hair (n) What colour hair does he have?

handsome (adj) Brad Pitt is a handsome film star.

height (n) “Tall” and “short” are adjectives for height.

medium height (adj) He’s not very tall. He’s medium height.

middle-aged (adj) Bryan is fat and middle-aged.

old (adj) “How old is Andy?” “He’s thirty-seven.”

pretty (adj) She’s a pretty girl with long dark hair.

short (adj) She’s a short pretty girl.

tall (adj) “How tall is he?” “He’s about 1 metre 80.”

thin (adj) Bryan isn’t thin, he’s fat.

ugly (adj) Ugly is the opposite of beautiful.

weight (n) “Fat” and “thin” are adjectives for weight.

young (adj) Andy is a handsome young man.

Other words & phrases

boy (n) Andy’s a good boy.  He doesn’t have parties in the house.

bread (n) I eat lots of French bread.

cat (n) Carl and Anna don’t have their cats in Spain.

chocolate (n) Chocolate is a sweet dark food that a lot of people like.

different (adj) Men and women are very different.

divorce (n) Is divorce common in your country?

\"sIst´\

\søn\

\"øNkl\

\eIdZ\

\"œv“´‘rIdZÆlUkIN\

\"bju…tIfl\

\dA…k\

\fe´\

\fœt\

\"glA…sIz\

\he´\

\"hœns´m\

\haIt\

\Æmi…dI´m "haIt\

\"mIdlÆeIdZd\

\´Uld\

\"prIti\

\SO…t\

\tO…l\

\TIn\

\"øgli\

\weIt\

\jøN\

\bOI\

\bred\

\kœt\

\"tSÅkl´t\

\"dIf“´‘r´nt\

\dI"vO…s\

Schwester

Sohn

Onkel

Alter

durchschnittlich aussehend

schön

dunkel

blond

dick

eine Brille

Haar

gut aussehend

(Körper)größe

mittlerer Größe

mittleren Alters

alt

hübsch

klein

groß

dünn; schlank

hässlich

Gewicht

jung

Junge

Brot

Katze

Schokolade

unterschiedlich

(Ehe)scheidung
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fashion (n) Are you interested in clothes and fashion?

feelings (n) Women talk about their feelings.

flat (n) We live in a flat in Malaga.

friend (n) Sandra lives in a big house with three friends.

get married When I meet the right girl I’ll get married and leave home.

girl (n) She’s a pretty girl with long dark hair.

home (n) Carl and Anna’s new home is in Spain.

house (n) It’s better for Andy if he has his own house or flat.

leave (v) When Andy meets the right girl he’ll get married and leave home.

life (n) I have a very American life now, with a big house and a big car.

love (v) I love Andy but it’s better if he has his own house or flat.

man (n) Andy’s not a boy – he’s a man!

office (n) The photo on p. 28 shows Valerie on the phone in an office.

per cent (n) 31 per cent of parents in Britain are not married.

personal (adj) Women talk about personal things to their friends.

point of view (n) Andy’s point of view is that his life at home with his parents is fine.

politics (n) The activities politicians do to get power are called politics.

problem (n) My father isn’t very happy but that’s his problem.

same (adj) “Do men and women like the same things?” “No, they don’t.”

sports (n) Men friends play sports and do things together.

thing (n) “Do men and women like the same things?” “No, they don’t.”

university (n) She goes to an American university in Seattle.

woman (n) It’s normal now for a British woman to have her first child when she’s 29.

Unit 3
Places to live

city (n) Are there any famous museums in your town or city?

city centre (n) Hugh lives in a flat in the city centre.

flat (n) Gerard has a big flat at the end of the Champs Elysées.

house (n) Sean lives in a small house in Scotland.

town (n) Are there any famous museums in your town or city?

village (n) A village is a place in the countryside where people live that is much 

smaller than a town.

\"fœSn\

\"fi…lINz\

\flœt\

\frend\

\get "mœrId\

\g‰…l\

\h´Um\

\haUs\

\li…v\

\lAIf\

\løv\

\mœn\

\"ÅfIs\

\p´ "sent\

\"p‰…snl\

\pOInt ´v "vju…\

\"pÅl´tIks\

\"prÅbl´m\

\seIm\

\spO…ts\

\TIN\

\ju…nI"v‰…sIti\

\"wUm´n\

\"sIti\

\sIti "sent´\

\flœt\

\haUs\

\taUn\

\"vIlIdZ\

Mode

Gefühle

Wohnung

Freund/Freundin

heiraten

Mädchen

Zuhause

Haus

(von zu Hause) weggehen

Leben

lieben

Mann

Büro

Prozent

persönlich

Ansicht; Meinung

Politik

Problem

gleich

Sport

Sache

Universität

Frau

(Groß)stadt

Stadtzentrum; -mitte

Wohnung

Haus

Stadt

Dorf
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Parts of a house

balcony (n) A balcony is an area outside the wall of a flat where you can sit and relax.

bathroom (n) “Are there any public bathrooms in the White House?” “No, there aren’t.”

bedroom (n) How many bedrooms are there in your house?

dining room (n) The dining room is the room where you eat meals.

door (n) A policeman always stands outside the door at Number 10 Downing Street.

hall (n) The hall is the place just inside the front door of a house or flat.

kitchen (n) The kitchen is the room where you cook food.

living room (n) The living room is the room where you relax and watch TV.

staircase (n) A staircase is a set of stairs in a building.

window (n) From my bedroom window I can see the garden.

Furniture

bed (n) There are some papers on the bed in Shelley’s bedroom.

bookcase (n) A bookcase is a piece of furniture where you keep books.

chair (n) Shelley doesn’t have any chairs in her room.

clock (n) The clock on the wall says 2 o’clock.

cooker (n) A cooker is a piece of equipment in a kitchen that you use to cook food.

cupboard (n) A cupboard is a piece of furniture, usually attached to a wall, where you 

keep things.

curtain (n) I need some curtains for the bedroom window.

desk (n) “Does Shelley have a desk in her bedroom?” “No, she doesn’t.”

fridge (n) A fridge is a piece of equipment in a kitchen used for keeping food and 

drinks cold.

lamp (n) Would you like a lamp for your desk?

picture (n) There are three pictures on the wall in Shelley’s bedroom.

plant (n) There’s a plant in front of the bookcase on p. 36.

sofa (n) A sofa is a piece of furniture that two or three people can sit on.

stereo (n) A stereo is a piece of equipment for listening to music.

television (n) I often watch television in the evening.

wardrobe (n) A wardrobe is a piece of furniture for keeping clothes.

\"bœlk´ni\

\"bA…Tru…m\

\"bedru…m\

\"daInIN ru…m\

\dO…\

\hO…l\

\"kItSIn\

\"lIvIN ru…m\

\"ste´keIs\

\"wInd´U\

\bed\

\"bUkkeIs\

\tSe´\

\klÅk\

\"kUk´\

\"køb´d\

\"k‰…tn\

\desk\

\frIdZ\

\lœmp\

\"pIktS´\

\plA…nt\

\"s´Uf´\

\"sterI´U\

\"tel´vIZn\

\"wO…dr´Ub\

Balkon

Badezimmer

Schlafzimmer

Esszimmer

Tür

Flur; Diele; Eingangshalle

Küche

Wohnzimmer

Treppe; Treppenhaus

Fenster

Bett

Bücherregal

Stuhl

Uhr

Herd

Schrank

Vorhang; Gardine

Schreibtisch

Kühlschrank

Lampe

Bild

Pflanze

Sofa

Stereo(anlage)

Fernsehen; Fernseher

Kleiderschrank; Garderobe
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Ordinal numbers

first The first person or thing comes or happens before all the others.

second The second person or thing is in the place or position counted as number two.

third The third person or thing is in the place or position counted as number three.

fourth The fourth person or thing is in the place or position counted as number four.

fifth The fifth person or thing is in the place or position counted as number five.

sixth The sixth person or thing is in the place or position counted as number six.

seventh The seventh person or thing is in the place or position counted as number

seven.

eighth The eighth person or thing is in the place or position counted as number 

eight.

ninth The ninth person or thing is in the place or position counted as number 

nine.

tenth The tenth person or thing is in the place or position counted as number ten.

Other words & phrases

art (n) The Tate Modern is Britain’s new museum of modern art.

baby (n) A baby is a very young child who cannot yet walk or talk.

big (adj) Gerard and his wife live in a big flat in Paris.

café (n) “What floor is the café on?” “It’s on the second floor.”

easy (adj) Easy is the opposite of difficult.

elevator (n) Take the elevator up to the second floor and turn right.

entrance (n) The entrance to Number 10 Downing Street is through a black door.

famous (adj) Number 10 Downing Street is a famous house where the Prime Minister lives.

film star (n) Brad Pitt and Nicole Kidman are famous film stars.

floor (n) The café is on the second floor.

horrible (adj) Horrible is the opposite of lovely.

information (n) For any information you need, go to the information desk.

lift (n) Take the lift or the stairs to the 3rd floor.

lovely (adj) Michael and Catherine have a lovely big family house on the beach.

modern (adj) The Tate Modern is Britain’s new museum of modern art.

museum (n) Tate Modern is the first British museum of the new millennium.

\f‰…st\

\"seknd\

\T‰…d\

\fO…T\

\fIfT\

\sIksT\

\"sevnT\

\eItT\

\naInT\

\tenT\

\A…t\

\"beIbi\

\bIg\

\"kœfeI\

\"i…zi\

\"el´veIt´\

\"entr´ns\

\"feIm´s\

\"fIlm stA…\

\flO…\

\"hÅr´bl\

\Inf´"meISn\

\lIft\

\"løvli\

\"mÅdn\

\mju…"zi´m\

erster, -e, -es

zweiter, -e, -es

dritter, -e, -es

vierter, -e, -es

fünfter, -e, -es

sechster, -e, -es

siebter, -e, -es

achter, -e, -es

neunter, -e, -es

zehnter, -e, -es

Kunst

Baby

groß

Café

leicht

Fahrstuhl, Lift

Eingang

berühmt

Filmstar

Etage; Geschoss

schrecklich

Information; Auskunft

Fahrstuhl; Lift

schön

modern

Museum
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new (adj) “Do you like your new flat?” “Yes, I do. It’s perfect.”

noisy (adj) Sean has a cottage in the mountains – far from other people and noisy cities.

official (adj) Number 10 Downing Street is the official residence of the British Prime 

Minister.

old (adj) Your mother has some old curtains.  Do you want them?

outside (prep) A policeman always stands outside the door of Number 10 Downing Street.

policeman (n) A policeman always stands outside the door of Number 10 Downing Street.

quiet (adj) It’s a small quiet house far from the city centre.

residence (n) The official residence of the Prime Minister is Number 10 Downing Street.

school (n) Her house is next to the school.

shop (n) Hugh’s flat is close to the shops.

stand (v) A policeman stands outside the door of Number 10 Downing Street.

Unit 4
Phrases with have go & get

have breakfast/dinner/lunch Will gets home at 9.00 and has dinner.

have a drink/a coffee/a sandwich After his meetings Will has a drink with friends in the café.

have a break Nothing Day is a time to have a break – to sit and do nothing.

have a nap On Saturdays and Sundays I have a nap in the afternoon.

get dressed When you get dressed you put clothes on.

get up What time do you get up in the morning?

get home I go home at 6:00 and I get home at 6:15.

go home I go home at 6:00 and I get home at 6:15.

go to bed I go to bed before 10:00 pm.

go to sleep At MetroNaps you listen to quiet, relaxing music and go to sleep.

\nju…\

\"nOIzi\

\´"fISl\

\´Uld\

\"aUtsaId\

\p´"li…sm´n\

\"kwaI´t\

\"rezId´ns\

/sku…l/

/SÅp/

\stœnd\

\hœv "brekf´st, "dIn´, løntS\

\hœv ´ "drINk, ´ "kÅfi, 

´ "sœnwItS\

\hœv ´ "breIk\

\hœv ´ "nœp\

\get "drest\

\get "øp\

\get "h´Um\

\g´U "h´Um\

\g´U t´ "bed\

\g´U t´ "sli…p\

neu

laut; durch Lärm belastet

offiziell; amtlich

alt

draußen vor

Polizist

ruhig

Amtssitz; Residenz

Schule

Laden; Geschäft

stehen

frühstücken

zu Mittag essen

zu Abend essen

einen trinken (gehen)

einen Kaffee trinken (gehen)

ein Sandwich essen (gehen)

eine Pause machen

ein Nickerchen machen

sich anziehen

aufstehen

zu Hause ankommen

nach Hause gehen

ins Bett gehen

einschlafen
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Months

January Nothing Day is on January 16th.

February February is the second month of the year.

March In March we have Mother’s Day.

April In April there’s Earth Day.

May May Day is on 1st May.

June In June we have Father’s Day.

July July is the seventh month of the year.

August I go on holiday in August.

September September is the ninth month of the year.

October In October there’s United Nations Day.

November November is the eleventh month of the year.

December December is the twelfth month of the year.

Housework

do the shopping I do the shopping on Saturdays.

clean the bathroom How often do you clean the bathroom?

make the bed I make the bed every morning.

wash the clothes I wash the clothes every week.

do the dishes He does the dishes every day.

take out the rubbish How often do you take out the rubbish?

Other words & phrases

breakfast (n) It’s nice to wake up late and have a relaxing breakfast.

card (n) Nothing Day is a day for nothing – no parties, no gifts, no cards.

class (n) I am sometimes late for English class.

closed (adj) Something that is closed is not open.

dinner (n) Will gets home at 9:00 and has dinner.

Earth (n) Earth Day is in April.

finish (v) I finish work at 5 pm.

gym (n) After his meetings, Will goes to the gym.

\"dZœnj´ri\

\"febru´ri\

\mA…tS\

\"eIprl\

\meI\

\dZu…n\

\dZ´"laI\

\"O…g´st\

\sep"temb´\

\Åk"t´Ub´\

\n´U"vemb´\

\dI"semb´\

\Ædu… D´ "SÅpIN\

\Ækli…n D´ "bA…Tru…m\

\ÆmeIk D´ "bed\

\ÆwÅS D´ "kl´UDz\

\Ædu… D´ "dISIz\

\ÆteIk aUt D´ "røbIS\

\"brekf´st\

\kA…d\

\klA…s\

\kl´Uzd\

\"dIn´\

\‰…T\

\"fInIS\

\dZIm\

Januar

Februar

März

April

Mai

Juni

Juli

August

September

Oktober

November

Dezember

einkaufen gehen

das Badezimmer säubern

das Bett machen

die Wäsche waschen

das Geschirr spülen

den Müll austragen

Frühstück

Karte

Unterrichtsstunde

geschlossen

Abendessen

Erde

aufhören; Schluss machen

Fitness-Center
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Halloween (n) Halloween is in October.

idea (n) Do you think Nothing Day is a good idea?

lunch (n) Lunch is the meal that you eat in the middle of the day.

meeting (n) He finishes work at 6:00 but has meetings after work. 

nap (n) When I go to work after a nap I’m relaxed.

nothing (pron) Nothing Day is a time to have a break – to sit and do nothing.

open (adj) MetroNaps is open from 10 am to 6 pm.

shower (n) In the morning I get up, have a shower, get dressed and have breakfast.

special (adj) Christina East thinks it’s time for a new special holiday called Nothing Day.

United Nations (n) United Nations Day is in October.

Unit 5
Things to take on holiday

alarm clock (n) An alarm clock is a clock that wakes you up by making a noise.

guide book (n) A guide book tells you about the museums, art galleries etc you can see in

a particular place.

passport (n) Remember to take your tickets and passport.

phrasebook (n) A phrasebook has lists of useful words and expressions in a particular 

language.

sunglasses (n) Sunglasses protect your eyes in the sun.

ticket (n) Remember to take your plane tickets and passport.

The weather

cloudy (adj) In Montreal it’s cloudy and windy, but warm.

cold (adj) It’s cold and snowy in Whitehorse.

cool (adj) It’s cool in Vancouver – 13°C.

rainy (adj) You need your umbrellas in Vancouver – it’s rainy and cool.

snowy (adj) It’s cold and snowy in Whitehorse – with temperatures of -12°C.

sunny (adj) In Toronto it’s sunny and cold.

warm (adj) In Montreal it’s sunny and warm.

windy (adj) It’s cloudy and windy but warm in Montreal.

\hœl´U"i…n\

\aI"di´\

\løntS\

\"mi…tIN\

\nœp\

\"nøTIN\

\"´Upn\

\"SaU´\

\"speSl\

\ju…ÆnaItId "neISnz\

\´"lA…m klÅk\

\"gaId bUk\

\"pA…spO…t\

\"freIzbUk\

\"sønglA…sIz\

\"tIkIt\

\"klaUdi\

\k´Uld\

\ku…l\

\"reIni\

\"sn´Ui\

\"søni\

\wO…m\

\"wIndi\

Halloween

Idee

Mittagessen

Besprechung; Treffen

Nickerchen

nichts

offen

Dusche

Sonder-; spezial

Vereinte Nationen

Wecker

Reise-; Stadtführer

(Reise)pass

Sprachführer

Sonnenbrille

(Flug-; Fahr)karte

bewölkt

kalt

kühl; frisch

regnerisch

verschneit

sonnig

warm

windig
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Other words & phrases

animal (n) Animals are welcome at the Shakespeare Guest House.

available (adj) At the Stratford Central Hotel smoking and non-smoking rooms are available.

barbeque (n) There is a garden with garden furniture and a barbeque area.

bilingual (adj) A bilingual dictionary shows words in two languages.

clean (adj) The rooms at the Shakespeare Guest House are clean and warm.

complimentary (adj) Complimentary tea and coffee is available in every room.

concert (n) There are great jazz concerts in Montreal.

continental breakfast (n) A continental breakfast is included with the price of your room.

cook (v) Did you cook dinner last night?

design (n) All our rooms have modern furniture and design.

destination (n) The USA is the most popular destination for Canadian tourists.

dictionary (n) A bilingual dictionary shows words in two languages.

draw (v) Children like drawing pictures.

drive (v) Can you drive a car?

electronic (adj) The Lingo Global contains an electronic dictionary.

establishment (n) The Shakespeare Guest House is a non-smoking establishment.

exchange rate (n) The exchange rate is now 1.78 = £1.

go skiing Banff is the perfect place to go skiing.

hear (v) The Phraselator can hear a phrase and say the translation for that phrase.

iPod (n) We didn’t bring the iPod.

jazz (n) Montreal has great jazz concerts.

machine (n) The phraselator and the Lingo Global 29 are two machines that translate 

languages.

money (n) Rich people have a lot of money.

play chess/tennis I play tennis in the summer.

sing (v) When you sing, you make music using your voice.

swim (v) When you swim you move through water using your arms and legs.

torch (n) A torch is a small electric light that you hold in your hand.

translate (v) The Lingo Global 29 can translate more than 58,000 useful phrases.

translation (n) With the Phraselator you can hear the translation.

type (v) To use the Lingo Global 29 you type words or phrases.

unnecessary (adj) Something that is unnecessary is not needed.

view (n) The Shakespeare Guest House is in a quiet, rural location with excellent views.

\"œnIm´l\

\´"veIl´bl\

\"bA…b´kju…\

\baI"lINgw´l\

\kli…n\

\kÅmplI"ment“´‘ri\

\"kÅns´t\

\ÆkÅntInentl "brekf´st\

\kUk\

\dI"zaIn\

\destI"neISn\

\"dIkSnri\

\drO…\

\draIv\

\Ilek"trÅnIk\

\Is"tœblISm´nt\

\Ik"stSeIndZ ÆreIt\

\g´U "ski…IN\

\hI´\

\"aIpÅd\

\dZœz\

\m´"Si…n\

\̀"møni\

\pleI "tSes, "tenIs\

\sIN\

\swIm\

\tO…tS\

\trœnz"leIt\

\trœnz"leISn\

\taIp\

\un"nes´s“´‘ri\

\vju…\

Tier

frei; verfügbar

Grillparty

zweisprachig

sauber

kostenlos; gratis

Konzert

kleines Frühstück

kochen

Design; Innenausstattung

Reiseziel

Wörterbuch

zeichnen

fahren

elektronisch

Haus

Wechselkurs

skifahren (gehen)

hören

iPod 

Jazz

Maschine; Gerät

Geld

spielen (Schach/Tennis)

singen

schwimmen

Taschenlampe

übersetzen

Übersetzung

(ein)tippen

unnötig

Aussicht
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16

Unit 6
Celebrations

birthday (n) “When’s your birthday?” “31 December.”

ceremony (n) I didn’t go to the wedding ceremony but I went to the party.

champagne (n) It’s nice to celebrate with a glass of champagne.

congratulate (v) We congratulated Richard and gave him a gold watch.

New Year’s Eve (n) New Year’s Eve is on 31 December.

retirement (n) We gave Richard a gold watch at his retirement party.

wedding (n) Kyle and Sue didn’t want a big wedding and got married in the town hall.

Films & books

cartoon (n) a) A cartoon is a film or TV programme, especially for children, with 

drawings of funny people or animals that seem to move.

b) A cartoon is a funny drawing in a magazine or newspaper, often with 

words underneath.

comedy (n) A comedy is a funny film or book that makes you laugh.

horror (n) A horror film or book is intended to frighten people.

love story (n) A love story is about two people who love each other.

romance (n) A romance is a story about two people who love each other.

science fiction (n) Science fiction is about imaginary events in the future, often about space 

travel and life on other planets.

thriller (n) A thriller is a book or film that tells an exciting story.

western (n) A western is about cowboys who lived in the western United States. 

Feelings

angry (adj) Men don’t cry when they are angry.

bored (adj) When you are bored, you feel impatient because you are not interested in 

something or have nothing to do.

happy (adj) Men cry a lot more than women when they are happy.

nervous (adj) When you are nervous, you feel excited and worried or slightly afraid.

sad (adj) Crying when you are sad will make you feel better.

Geburtstag

Zeremonie; Förmlichkeiten

Champagner; Sekt

beglückwünschen; gratulieren

Silvester

Pensionierung

Hochzeit

Cartoon

Komödie

Horror-; Schauer(geschichte)

Liebesgeschichte

Liebesgeschichte

Science-fiction

Thriller; Krimi

Western

verärgert; zornig

gelangweilt

glücklich

nervös

traurig

\"b‰…TdeI\

\"ser´m´ni\

\Sœm"peIn\

\k´n"grœtSUleIt\

\Ænju… jI´z "i…v\

\rI"taI´m´nt\

\"wedIN\

\kA…"tu…n\

\"kÅm´di\

\"hÅr´\

\"løv stO…ri\

\r´U"mœns\

\saI´ns "fIkSn\

\"TrIl´\

\"west´n\

\"œNgri\

\bO…d\

\"hœpi\

\"n‰…v´s\

\sœd\
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Adjectives of opinion

awful (adj) I hated the film.  I thought it was awful.

bad (adj) People often cry when they are sad or feel bad.

excellent (adj) I loved the film.  I thought it was excellent.

good (adj) David Beckham is a very good football player.

great (adj) “Do you like Antonio Banderas?” “Yes, I do.  I thinkhe’s great.”

horrible (adj) You use the word horrible to describe someone or something that you do 

not like.

lovely (adj) You use the word lovely to describe someone or something that you like.

nice (adj) We had a compartment for two people, with some champagne and nice food.

terrible (adj) The weather was terrible – it rained all the time.

wonderful (adj) We had a wonderful dinner at Richard’s retirement party.

Other words & phrases

acceptable (adj) In Britain and America it is more acceptable for men to cry today.

act (v) What films has Nicole Kidman acted in?

actor (n) Christopher Reeve was a famous actor who played Superman.

athlete (n) Athletes often cry when they win Olymic medals.

author (n) J. K. Rowling is the author of the Harry Potter books.

be born “Where was Christopher Reeve born?” “In Manhattan.”

boat ride (n) We went for a boat ride on the Thames – it was great.

buy (v) When you buy something, you pay money in order to have it.

cry (v) People often cry when they are sad.

fall (v) Christopher Reeve fell off a horse 12 years ago.

favourite (adj) The Big Read was a TV show to discover Britain’s favourite books.

feel (v) People usually feel better after crying.

health (n) Crying is good for your health.

horse (n) A horse is a large animal that people ride.

medal (n) Matthew Pinsent cried when he won a gold medal at the Athens Olympics.

president (n) Two recent US presidents Bill Clinton and George W. Bush, have cried on TV.

psychologist (n) British psychologists say that men cry more easily than we think.

stress (n) To pronounce words correctly you must put the stress on the right syllable.

\"O…fl\

\bœd\

\"eks´l´nt\

\gUd\

\greIt\

\"hÅrIbl\

\"løvli\

\naIs\

\"terIbl\

\"wønd´fl\

\´k"sept´bl\

\œkt\

\"œkt´\

\"œTli…t\

\"O…T´\

\bI "bO…n\

\"b´Ut raId\

\baI\

\kraI\

\fO…l\

\"feIv“´‘rIt\

\fi…l\

\helT\

\hO…s\

\"medl\

\"prezId´nt\

\saI"kÅl´dZIst\

\stres\

furchtbar

schlecht

ausgezeichnet

gut

großartig

schrecklich

schön; reizend

lecker

furchtbar

wunderbar

akzeptabel

(schau)spielen

Schauspieler(in)

(Leicht)athlet(in)

Autor(in)

geboren sein/werden

Bootsfahrt

kaufen

weinen

fallen

Lieblings-

sich fühlen

Gesundheit

Pferd

Medaille

Präsident

Psychologe(in)

Betonung
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symbol (n) The book was about symbols in the art of a famous painter.

weekend (n) Last weekend I rented a DVD.

win (v) Men often cry when their football team plays very well and wins a cup.

Unit 7
Food

apple (n) Every morning I had three apples, two bananas and a glass of water for 

breakfast.

banana (n) Every morning I had three apples and two bananas for breakfast.

bean (n) Rice and beans is a popular meal in Latin America.

bread (n) Most people eat bread for breakfast.

butter (n) Butter is a yellow food that you put on bread.

cake (n) We ate some chocolate cake for dessert.

carrot (n) A carrot is a long orange vegetable.

cheese (n) A Marguerita pizza is covered with tomato sauce and cheese.

chicken (n) Chicken is a common type of white meat.

chips (n pl) Too many chips are bad for you.

chocolate (n) We had some chocolate cake for dessert.

corn (n) It’s a simple Mexican dish with rice, beans and corn.

curry (n) I love spicy curries!

diet (n) I didn’t lose one kilogram on the two Fs diet – it’s awful.

egg (n) Bacon and eggs is a typical British breakfast.

fish (n) Do you prefer fish or meat?

fruit (n) You should eat two or three pieces of fruit every day.

garlic (n) Garlic is a small round white vegetable that gives a strong flavour to food.

ice cream (n) Ice cream is a cold, sweet food made from sugar and cream that children love.

lemon (n) A lemon is a small, round yellow fruit.

lettuce (n) Tomato salad consists of lettuce and tomatoes.

milk (n) Milk and eggs are dairy products.

nutrition (n) The Nutrition Reference Guide tells you about different types of food.

onion (n) Add an onion and some garlic to the oil and cook the paella.

orange (n) An orange is a round orange fruit.

\"sImb´l\

\wi…k"end\

\wIn\

\"œpl\

\b´"nA…n´\

\bi…n\

\bred\

\"bøt´\

\keIk\

\"kœr´t\

\tSi…z\

\"tSIkIn\

\"tSIps\

\"tSÅkl´t\

\kO…n\

\"kørI\

\"daI´t\

\eg\

\fIS\

\fru…t\

\"gA…lIk\

\aIs "kri…m\

\"lem´n\

\"letIs\

\mIlk\

\nju…"trISn\

\"ønj´n\

\"ÅrIndz\

Symbol

Wochenende

gewinnen

Apfel

Banane

Bohne

Brot

Butter

Kuchen

Karotte

Käse

Huhn; Hühnerfleisch

Pommes frites

Schokolade

Mais

Curry

Diät

Ei

Fisch

Obst

Knoblauch

Eis(krem)

Zitrone

Kopfsalat

Milch

Ernährung

Zwiebel

Orange; Apfelsine
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pasta (n) Spaghetti is a type of pasta.

pepper (n) Put some salt and pepper on your paella.

potato (n) Don’t eat too many potatoes if you’re on a diet.

rice (n) Rice is the most important food of 50% of the world’s population.

salt (n) Add salt, pepper and a lemon to the paella.

sausage (n) For paella you need different types of shellfish and Spanish sausages.

shellfish (n) Paella consists of rice and different types of shellfish.

spinach (n) Spinach is a vegetable with dark green leaves that are eaten raw in salads

or cooked.

soup (n) I love thick soup in the winter.

steak (n) Steak is the meat from a cow.

sugar (n) Do you have sugar in tea and coffee?

tomato (n) Spaghetti bolognese is spaghetti with meat and tomato sauce.

vegetable (n) You have to eat a lot of vegetables if you’re on a diet.

water (n) Drinking water is good for you.

wine (n) Do you prefer red or white wine?

Describing food

cold (adj) I can’t drink tea if it’s cold.

cooked (adj) You can eat spinach raw or cooked.

delicious (adj) I love rice and beans.  It’s delicious.

hot (adj) The tea was too hot.  I couldn’t drink it.

raw (adj) You can eat spinach cooked or raw in salads.

salty (adj) Don’t eat too much salty food.

spicy (adj) I can’t eat Mexican food.  It’s too spicy.

sweet (adj) There’s a lot of sugar in this coffee.  It’s too sweet.

Eating out

bill (n) When we finished the meal we asked for the bill.

dessert (n) We ate chocolate cake for dessert.

main course (n) For the main course we had fish.

meal (n) Fast food meals consist of chips, burgers, sausages etc.

\"pœst´\

\"pep´\

\p´"teIt´U\

\raIs\

\sÅlt\

\"sÅsIdZ\

\"SelfIS\

\"spInIdZ\

\su…p\

\steIk\

\"SUg´\

\t´"mA…t´U\

\"vedZ´t´bl\

\"wO…t´\

\waIn\

\k´Uld\

\kUkt\

\dI"lIS´s\

\hÅt\

\rO…\

\"sÅlti\

\"spaIsi\

\swi…t\

\bIl\

\dI"z‰…t\

\meIn "kO…s\

\mi…l\

Pasta

Pfeffer

Kartoffel

Reis

Salz

Wurst

Meeresfrüchte

Spinat

Suppe

Steak

Zucker

Tomate

Gemüse

Wasser

Wein

kalt

gekocht

sehr lecker; köstlich

heiß

roh

salzig; salzhaltig

scharf (gewürzt)

süß

Rechnung

Nachtisch; Dessert

Hauptgericht

Essen; Mahlzeit
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menu (n) We looked at the menu.

tip (n) We left a tip for the waiter/waitress.

waiter (n) Waiter, could we have a menu please?

waitress (n) The waitress asked us what we wanted to eat.

Unit 8
Transport

airport (n) I don’t like waiting for a long time at the airport.

bicycle (n) More people use public transport and bicycles now in London.

boat (n) A boat is a small vehicle that people use for travelling on water.

bus (n) My husband hardly ever takes taxis.  He usually goes by bus.

bus stop (n) A bus stop is a place where you wait for a bus.

car (n) Cars are more dangerous than planes.

car park (n) A car park is an area or building where people can leave their cars.

drive (v) A lot of people like listening to music while they drive.

motorbike (n) A motorbike is a vehicle with two wheels and an engine that looks like a 

large, heavy bicycle.

on foot “Shall we go by car?”  “No, let’s go on foot.”

plane (n) Planes are about 29 times safer than cars.

port (n) A port is an area of water where ships stop.

ride (v) Do you sometimes ride a bicycle to work?

station (n) The train stops at the next station.

train (n) I go by train to work.

underground (n) A lot of people in London take the underground to work.

Action verbs

kiss (v) One of the pictures on p. 85 shows a man and woman kissing.

run (v) When you run you move your legs and feet quickly to go somewhere.

sing (v) When you sing you make music using your voice.

sleep (v) One of the pictures on p. 85 shows a baby sleeping.

smoke (v) You smoke too many cigarettes.

walk (v) He walks to work every day.

\"menju…\

\tIp\

\"weIt´\

\"weItr´s\

\"e´pO…t\

\"baIsIkl\

\b´Ut\

\bøs\

\"bøs stÅp\

\kA…\

\"kA… pA…k\

\draIv\

\"m´Ut´ÆbaIk\

\Ån "fUt\

\pleIn\

\pO…t\

\raId\

\"steISn\

\treIn\

\"ønd´graUnd\

\kIs\

\røn\

\sIN\

\sli…p\

\sm´Uk\

\wO…k\

Speisekarte

Trinkgeld

Herr Ober; Kellner

Fräulein; Kellnerin

Flughafen

Fahrrad

Boot

Bus

Bushaltestelle

Auto; Wagen

Parkplatz

fahren

Motorrad

zu Fuß

Flugzeug

Hafen

(Rad)fahren

Bahnhof; Halt(estelle)

(Eisen)bahn; Zug

U-Bahn

küssen

laufen; rennen

singen

schlafen

rauchen

(zu Fuß) gehen
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Other words & phrases

accident (n) The chances of being in a plane accident are about 0.0000000004%.

adult (n) More than 10 million British adults are afraid of flying.

alone (adj) If you can’t stand flying you are not alone.

common (adj) Fear of flying is one of the most common phobias in the world.

course (n) There was a one-day course at the airport for people afraid of flying.

exactly (adv) The pilot explained exactly how a plane works.

fear (n) Fear of flying is one of the most common phobias in the world.

flight (n) The most difficult part of the course was the 45-minute flight.

follow (n) A man in a hat followed me into the restaurant.

hand (n) During the flight some people held hands and some people cried.

law (n) In 2003 the mayor of London made a new law to help reduce traffic.

phobia (n) Fear of flying is one of the most common phobias in the world.

photograph (n) We stopped to take some photographs.

pilot (n) The pilot explained exactly how a plane works.

police station (n) A police station is the building where the local police works.

safe (adj) Planes are about 29 times safer than cars.

security (n) I don’t like going through security – it makes me nervous.

stranger (n) I don’t like talking to strangers on planes.

survive (v) After the 45-minute flight I felt I could get on a plane and survive.

take (v) She took a taxi home from the party.

Unit 9
Clothes

boot (n) A boot is a type of shoe that covers your foot and part of your leg.

dress (n) A dress is a piece of clothing that covers a woman’s body and part of her legs.

jacket (n) A jacket is a short coat that covers the upper part of the body.

jeans (n) Jeans are trousers made of heavy cotton cloth and are often blue.

jumper (n) A jumper is a warm piece of clothing that covers your upper body and arms.

shirt (n) For a man, I think a shirt and tie make a good impression at an interview.

\"œksId´nt\

\"œdølt\

\´"l´Un\

\"kÅmn\

\kO…s\

\Ig"zœktli\

\fI´\

\flaIt\

\"fÅl´U\

\hœnd\

\lO…\

\"f´Ubi´\

\"f´Ut´grA…f\

\"paIl´t\

\p´"li…s steISn\

\seIf\

\sI"kjU´rIti\

\"streIndZ´\

\s´"vaIv\

\teIk\

\bu…t\

\dres\

\"dZœkIt\

\dZi…nz\

\"dZømp´\

\S‰…t\

Unfall

Erwachsene(r)

allein

häufig; weit verbreitet

Kurs

genau

Angst

Flug

folgen

Hand

Gesetz

Phobie

Foto

Pilot

Polizeiwache

sicher

Sicherheitskontrolle

Fremde(r)

überleben

nehmen

Stiefel

Kleid

Jackett; Jacke

Jeans

Pullover

Hemd
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shoe (n) A shoe is the thing that you wear on your foot, usually over socks.

skirt (n) A skirt is a piece of clothing for a woman that hangs from the waist.

tie (n) For a man, I think a shirt and tie make a good impression at an interview.

trainers (n pl) Trainers are comfortable shoes that you wear for doing sport.

trousers (n) Trousers are a piece of clothing for men and women that cover the body 

from the waist to the feet and that are divided into separate parts for each leg.

T-shirt (n) A T-shirt is a soft shirt with short sleeves and no collar.

Body

arm (n) Stretch your arms and your hands as exercise.

back (n) When you sit for a long time keep your back straight and your feet on the floor.

chest (n) Your chest is the upper front part of your body between your neck and 

your stomach.

elbow (n) Your elbow is the part in the middle of your arm where it bends.

finger (n) Your fingers are the long thin parts on the end of your hands.

foot/feet (n) When you sit for a long time keep your back straight and your feet on the floor.

hand (n) In Canada you should shake a person’s hand for the first meeting.

head (n) Many English-speaking countries have the Queen of England’s head on 

their coins.

knee (n) Your knee is the part in the middle of your leg where it bends.

leg (n) Your leg is one of the two parts of your body to which your feet are attached.

neck (n) You can hurt your arms, your neck and your wrists if you sit for a long 

time every day.

shoulder (n) Stretch your arms, your hands and your shoulders as exercise.

stomach (n) Your stomach is the part of your body where food goes after you have 

eaten it.

wrist (n) You can hurt your arms, your neck and your wrists if you sit for a long 

time every day.

Face

cheek (n) Your cheek is the soft part on each side of your face below your eyes.

chin (n) Your chin is the part of your face below your mouth.

\Su…\

\sk‰…t\

\taI\

\"treIn´z\

\"traUz´z\

\"ti…S‰…t\

\A…m\

\bœk\

\tSest\

\"elb´U\

\"fINg´\

\fUt, fi…t\

\hœnd\

\hed\

\ni…\

\leg\

\nek\

\"S´Uld´\

\"støm´k\

\rIst\

\tSi…k\

\tSIn\

Schuh

Rock

Krawatte; Schlips

Sport-, Turnschuhe

Hose

T-Shirt

Arm

Rücken

Brust

Ellbogen

Finger

Fuß/Füße

Hand

Kopf

Knie

Bein

Hals; Nacken

Schulter

Magen; Bauch

Handgelenk

Backe; Wange

Kinn
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ear (n) Your ear is one of the two parts at the side of your head that you hear with.

eye (n) Your eye is one of the two things in your face that you see with.

hair (n) Hair is what grows on your head and can be black, brown or blond.

mouth (n) Your mouth is the part of your face below your nose that you use to eat 

and speak.

nose (n) Your nose is the part of your face above your nose that you use for smelling.

tooth/teeth (n) Your teeth are the hard white objects inside your mouth that you use for biting.

Health problems

cold (n) When you have a cold you have a red nose and you sneeze.

headache (n) When you’ve got a headache, your head hurts.

hurt (v) You can hurt your back, your arms, your neck and your wrists if you sit for 

a long time.

ill (adj) I feel ill – I’ve got a headache and I feel sick.

stomachache (adj) I had a stomachache after eating a big meal.

tired (adj) I feel tired because I’ve been working very hard.

toothache (adj) If your toothache is bad you must go to the dentist.

Unit 10
Places in a city

bank (n) You mustn’t smoke in any offices or banks in Ireland.

disco (n) A disco is a place where people dance to popular music.

hospital (n) A hospital is a place where people go when they are ill or injured.

hotel (n) The Cape Grace is a five-star hotel next to the sea in Cape Town.

library (n) You must take the books back to the library.

nightclub (n) The nightclub closes at 3 am.

school (n) A school is a place where children go to learn.

shop (n) There are hundreds of little shops at the market.

shopping centre (n) The shopping centre is in the middle of the town.

stadium (n) A stadium is a large building where people watch sports events.

town hall (n) A town hall is a building that has all the offices of a town’s local government.

\I´\

\aI\

\he´\

\maUT\

\n´Uz\

\tu…T, ti…T\

\k´Uld\

\"hedeIk\

\h‰…t\

\Il\

\"støm´keIk\

\"taIj´d\

\"tu…TeIk\

\bœNk\

\"dIsk´U\

\"hÅspItl\

\h´U"tel\

\"laIbr´rI\

\"naItkløb\

\sku…l\

\SÅp\

\"SÅpIN sent´\

\"steIdi´m\

\taUn "hO…l\

Ohr

Auge

Haar

Mund

Nase

Zahn/Zähne

Erkältung

Kopfschmerzen

wehtun; verletzen

krank

Bauchschmerzen

müde

Zahnschmerzen

Bank

Disko

Krankenhaus

Hotel

Bibliothek

Nachtclub

Schule

Laden; Geschäft

Einkaufszentrum

Stadion

Rathaus
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Describing a town/city

beautiful (adj) Cape Town is one of South Africa’s most beautiful cities.

boring (adj) It’s a grey and boring city.

cheap (adj) Travelling by bus is cheap.

cosmopolitan (adj) Most people think that Toronto is more cosmopolitan than Ottawa.

dangerous (adj) Sharks are one of the most dangerous animals in the world.

expensive (adj) The Cape Grace is a five-star hotel that’s very expensive.

friendly (adj) Canadians say that people from other cities are more friendly than 

Torontonians.

historical (adj) Are there any beautiful or historical buildings in your city?

interesting (adj) Toronto is more interesting because it’s bigger and more cosmopolitan.

modern (adj) The new museum is very modern.

noisy (adj) Our hotel was very noisy because of all the traffic.

polluted (adj) The air is often very polluted in big cities.

quiet (adj) The village is very quiet after dark.

safe (adj) London is a safe city if you are careful.

ugly (adj) A lot of modern buildings are ugly.

unfriendly (adj) Big cites can be unfriendly places.

go + ing

go dancing The Dockside nightclub is a good place to go dancing and have a good time.

go diving You can go diving with sharks in Gansbaai, Cape Town.

go sightseeing You can go sightseeing on Robben Island.

go shopping What’s the best place to go shopping for clothes?

go swimming At Cape Grace you can go swimming in the pool or relax in the spa.

go walking You can go walking on the top of Table Mountain.

Size & colours

big (adj) The Dockside is the biggest nightclub in South Africa.

dark (adj) My favourite colour is dark red. 

gold (adj) Gold is the colour of the valuable yellow metal that is used for making 

jewellery.

\"bju…tIfl\

\"bO…rIN\

\tSi…p\

\kÅzm´"pÅlItn\

\"deIndZ´r´s\

\Ik"spensIv\

\"frendli\

\hIs"tÅrIkl\

\"Intr´stIN\

\"mÅd´n\

\"nOIzi\

\p´"lu…tId\

\"kwaIj´t\

"seIf\

\"øgli\

\øn"frendli\

\g´U "dA…nsIN\

\g´U "daIvIN\

\g´U "saItsi…IN\

\g´U "SÅpIN\

\g´U "swImIN\

\g´u "wO…kIN\

\bIg\

\da…k\

\g´Uld\

schön

langweilig

billig

kosmopolitisch

gefährlich

teuer

freundlich

historisch

interessant

modern

laut

verpestet; verschmutzt

ruhig

sicher

hässlich

unfreundlich

tanzen gehen

tauchen (gehen)

auf Besichtigungstour gehen

einkaufen gehen

schwimmen gehen

wandern gehen

groß

dunkel

golden; goldfarben
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large (adj) The photo on p. 108 shows a large white and blue football shirt.

light (adj) A light colour is pale in colour, not dark.

silver (adj) The photo on p. 108 shows a silver keyring.

small (adj) Alicante is smaller than Madrid.

tiny (adj) Can you see the tiny silver keychain on p. 108?

Other words & phrases

apartheid (n) Robben Island was one of South Africa’s worst prisons during apartheid.

at least You must keep at least one hand on a bicycle.

bizarre (adj) Something that is bizarre is very strange.

carry (v) In most American cities you needn’t have a permit to buy or carry a gun.

dancefloor (n) The Dockside nightclub has a dancefloor for 5,000 people.

get dressed You must get dressed in your hotel room, not in your car, if you want to go 

swimming in Destin, Florida.

gun (n) You needn’t have a permit to buy a gun.

illegal (adj) It’s illegal to predict the future in Yamhill, Oregon.

jewellery (n) You can find cheap jewellery and quality clothes at the shopping centre.

keyring (n) The picture on p.108 shows a tiny silver keyring.

lose (v) If you lose your pet tiger, you must call the police within one hour in 

Canton, Ohio.

offer (v) Paragraphs 1–6 describe some of the best things Cape Town has to offer.

permit (n) In most American cities you needn’t have a permit to carry a gun.

pig (n) You mustn’t take a pig to the beach in Miami Beach, Florida.

quality (n) The air quality in White Plains is better than in New York.

shark (n) The ocean near Cape Town is famous for sharks.

shout (v) You must not shout or sing in public at night in the town of Topeka, Kansas.

skill (n) A skill is the ability to do something well.

snake (n) In Toledo, Ohio it’s against the law to throw a snake at another person.

spa (n) At Cape Grace hotel you can go swimming in the pool or relax in the spa.

strange (adj) Do you have any strange laws in your town or country?

stressed (adj) Relaxing in a spa is wonderful if you are stressed.

teddy bear (n) There are some bright red teddy bears with England on them in the gift shop.

throw (v) It’s illegal to throw a snake at another person in Toledo, Ohio.

towel (n) There are some yellow towels in the gift shop on p. 108.

\lA…dZ\

\laIt\

\"sIlv´\

\smO…l\

\"taIni\

\´"pA…thaIt\

\´t "li…st\

\bI"zA…\

\"kœri\

\"dA…nsflO…\

\get "drest\

\gøn\

\I"li…gl\

\"dZU´lri\

\"ki…rIN\

\lu…z\

\"Åf´\

\"p‰…mIt\

\pIg\

\"kwÅlIti\

\SA…k\

\SaUt\

\skIl\

\sneIk\

\spa…\

\streIndZ\

\strest\

\"tedi "be´\

\Tr´U\

\taUl\

groß

hell

silbern; silberfarben

klein

winzig

Apartheid

wenigstens

bizarr

tragen

Tanzfläche

sich anziehen

(Schuss)waffe

illegal; gegen das Gesetz

Schmuck

Schlüsselkette

verlieren

anbieten

Erlaubnis; (Waffen)schein

Schwein

Qualität

Hai(fisch)

rufen; schreien

Fähigkeit

Schlange

(Heil)bad

seltsam

gestresst

Teddy(bär)

werfen

Handtuch
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Unit 11
Jobs

accountant (n) An accountant is someone whose job is to prepare financial records for a 

company or person.

actor (n) An actor is someone who performs in plays and films.

builder (n) A builder is someone whose job is to build and repair houses.

doctor (n) In Britain 25% of new doctors every year come from other countries. 

nurse (n) Are nurses usually women in your country?

secretary (n) I met my ex-husband when I was his secretary.

security guard (n) A security guard looks after a building at night.

vet (n) A vet is a doctor for animals.

waiter (n) A waiter is a man who serves people in a restaurant or café.

Describing work

badly-paid (adj) A badly-paid job is one in which you do not get a lot of money.

employed (adj) My brother is employed as a vet.

full-time (adj) I have a full-time job in an office.

part-time (adj) In the future part-time jobs will be more common than full-time jobs.

permanent (adj) She has a permanent job with a bank.

temporary (adj) A temporary job is one that you do only for a limited period of time.

unemployed (adj) Someone who is unemployed does not have a job.

well-paid (adj) A well-paid job pays you a lot of money.

Collocations with make & do

do a good job I usually do a good job when I’m motivated.

do homework I always do my homework every night.

make a friend Happy people make friends more easily.

make a mistake I sometimes make mistakes in English.

\´"kaUnt´nt\

\"œkt´\

\"bIld´\

\"dÅkt´\

\n‰…s\

\sI"kjU´r´ti gA…d\

\"sekr´tri\

\vet\

\"weIt´\

\"bœdli peId\

\Im"plOId\

\"fUltaIm\

\"pA…taIm\

\"p‰…m´n´nt\

\"temp´r´ri\

\ønIm"plOId\

\"welpeId\

\Ædu… ´ gUd "dZÅb\

\du… "h´Umw‰…k\

\meIk ´ "frend\

\meIk ´ mIs"teIk\

Buchhalter

Schauspieler

Bauunternehmer

Arzt; Ärztin

Krankenpfleger(in)

Sekretär(in)

(Nacht) wächter

Tierarzt, -ärztin

Kellner; Ober

schlecht bezahlt

angestellt

Vollzeit-

Teilzeit-

Langzeit-

befristet

arbeitslos

gut bezahlt

ordentlich arbeiten

Hausaufgaben machen

Freunde finden; sich 

anfreunden

Fehler machen
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make coffee I never make coffee in the morning.  I make tea.

make plans It’s important to make plans for the future.

Phrasal verbs

ask out (v) If you ask someone out, you invite them to go somewhere with you 

because you want to start a romantic relationship with them.

break up (v) If two people break up, they end a romantic relationship.

get along (v) If two people get along, they like each other and are friendly to each other.

get up (v) When you get up in the morning, you get out of bed.

go out (v) If you go out with someone, you have a romantic relationship with them.

Other words & phrases

chance (n) When you make a mistake, see this as a chance to learn something new.

chapter (n) Each chapter of the book Futurework is about a different subject.

invisible (adj) Something that is invisible cannot be seen.

opportunity (n) An opportunity is a chance to do something.

public (adj) The National Health Service is a public health service in Britain.

quit (v) It’s hard to quit smoking.

regret (v) If you don’t make an appointment with the dentist, you will regret it later.

save (money) (v) It’s never too late to save money and it needn’t be a lot.

volunteer work (n) People who do volunteer work help other people.

Unit 12
Music

band (n) The Rolling Stones are a famous pop band.

classical (music) (n) Classical music is music written by composers such as Mozart and Beethoven.

folk (music) (n) Folk music is traditional music from a particular country or region.

jazz (n) Jazz is a type of music with a strong lively beat in which the musicians 

often make up the music as they play.

musician (n) The musicians Prince, Seal and Annie Lennox say that Joni Mitchell was 

an influence on their music.

\meIk "kÅfi\

\meIk "plœnz\

\A…sk "aUt\

\breIk "øp\

\get ´"lÅN\

\get "øp\

\g´U "aUt\

\tSA…ns\

\"tSœpt´\

\In"vIz´bl\

\Åp´"tju…nIti\

\"pøblIk\

\kwIt\

\rI"gret\

\seIv\

\vÅl´n"tI´ w‰…k\

\bœnd\

\klœsIkl\

\f´Uk\

\dZœz\

\mju…"zISn\

Kaffee machen

Pläne machen

einladen

sich trennen

sich verstehen; gut 

miteinander auskommen

aufstehen

ausgehen

Gelegenheit; Chance

Kapitel

unsichtbar

Gelegenheit

öffentlich

aufgeben; aufhören mit

bereuen

Geld sparen

freiwillige Arbeit

Band

klassische Musik

Volksmusik

Jazz

Musiker(in)
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pop (music) (n) Pop music is a type of music, usually played on electronic instruments, 

that a lot of young people like.

R&B (n) Aretha Franklin has sung some of the most famous R&B songs in history.

rap (n) Rap is a type of music where someone talks over a strong musical beat.

rock (music) (n) Rock music is a type of music that uses a heavy regular beat, electric 

guitars and singing.

singer (n) I think Robbie Williams is a great singer.

song (n) Bob Dylan has written more than 450 songs.

songwriter (n) Joni Mitchell is one of the most important women songwriters of the 

twentieth century.

Media

camera (n) A camera is a piece of equipment used for taking photographs or for 

making films.

game show (n) A game show is a TV programme in which people play games in order to 

win prizes.

journalist (n) A journalist is someone who writes articles or interviews people for a 

newspaper or for TV.

newspaper (n) Have you ever had your photo in the newspaper?

radio (n) Have you ever called a radio programme with a question?

the (morning/evening) news (n) Football players are always in the news a lot.

Other words & phrases

achievement (n) An achievement is something very good or special that someone does.

award (n) The Lifetime Achievement award is for individuals or groups who have 

made an important contribution to the music business.

beginning (n) Every end is a new beginning.

brochure (n) The text on p. 126 is an advertisement brochure fora language school.

choose (v) Time magazine chooses the Person of the Year.

lifetime (n) Joni Mitchell received the Grammy Lifetime Achievement Award in 2002.

memorise (v) Learning English isn’t only grammar and lots of vocabulary to memorize – 

you can also learn with films and songs. 

\pÅp\

\ÆA…r ´n "bi…\

\rœp\

\rÅk\

\"sIN´\

\sÅN\

\"sÅNraIt´\

\"kœmr´\

\"geIm S´U\

\"dZ‰…n´lIst\

\"nju…zpeIp´\

\"reIdi´U\

\D´ "nju…z\

\´"tSi…vm´nt\

\´"wO…d\

\bI"gInIN\

\"br´US´\

\tSu…z\

\"laIftaIm\

\"mem´raIz\

Popmusik

R&B (Rhythm-and-Blues)

Rap

Rockmusik

Sänger(in)

Lied

Liedermacher(in)

Kamera; Fotoapparat

Gameshow

Journalist

Zeitung

Radio

(in den) Schlagzeilen;

Nachrichten

Leistung; Errungenschaft

Auszeichnung; Preis

Anfang

Broschüre

wählen

für ihr Lebenswerk

sich einprägen; lernen
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A, an, plurals

Wir verwenden a und an vor Substantiven im Singular.
Wir verwenden a vor einem Konsonanten.
a TV
a pen
a door

Wir verwenden an vor einem Vokal.
an apple
an ID card
an earring

Um das Plural zu bilden, fügen wir -s/-es/-ies hinzu.
-s
pen pens
door doors
apple apples

-es
sandwich sandwiches
bus buses

-ies
dictionary dictionaries
baby babies

! a/an nicht zusammen mit Pluralformen verwenden!
✔ a door
✗ a doors

Basics 1 Language reference 
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Language reference 1
Present simple

Positive Aussagesätze

Langform Kurzform

I am I’m 

He/She/It is from Canada. He’s/She’s/It’s fine.

You/We/They are You’re/We’re/They’re

Um die Negativform von to be zu bilden, fügen wir not (oder n’t) hinzu.

Negative Aussagesätze

Langform Kurzform

I am not from Spain. I’m not from Spain.

He/She/It is not a teacher. He/She/It isn’t a teacher.

You/We/They are not in class. You/We/They aren’t in class.
oder
You’re/We’re/They’re not in class.

Um Fragesätze mit  to be zu bilden, setzen wir das Verb vor das Subjekt.
Verb Subjekt
Are you married?

Frage

Am I

Is he/she/it 30 years old?

Are you/we/they

Kurzantwort

I
am.
’m not.

Yes,
he/she/it

is.
No, isn’t.

you/we/they
are.
aren’t.

Possessive adjectives

I my It’s my book.

you your What’s your name?

he his It’s his mobile phone.

she her Is it her pen?

it its What’s its name?

we our It’s our class.

they their I am their teacher.

Das Possessivpronomen als Adjektiv steht immer vor dem Substantiv.

Wir verwenden this/these, um über Dinge zu sprechen, die HIER (in der Nähe)
sind.

Wir verwenden that/those, um über Dinge zu sprechen, die DORT (drüben) sind.
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Frage

Do I

Does he/she/it work?

Do you/we/they

Kurzantwort

I
do.
don’t.

Yes,
he/she/it

does.
No, doesn’t.

you/we/they
do.
don’t.

Adjektive
Adjektive stehen immer vor dem 
Substantiv.

a black cat
the big house

Adjektive stehen auch nach dem Verb 
to be.

Nancy is tall.
Her hair is long.

Adjektive haben keine Pluralform im
Englischen.

The old men.
Nicht The olds men.

Present simple
Wie verwenden das present simple, um über Dinge zu sprechen, die im
Allgemeinen der Wahrheit entsprechen.

I go to an American university.
We live in Malaga.

Positive Aussagesätze

I speak

He/She/It speaks English.

You/We/They speak 

Die Verbform bleibt immer gleich – außer bei she/he/it. Hierfür (she/he/it) 
fügen wir ein –s hinzu.

Schreibweise: present simple mit she/he/it
Bei den meisten Verben fügen wir –s hinzu.

work – works eat – eats like – likes play – plays

Bei Verben, die mit einem Konsonanten + y enden, wird y zu ies.

study – studies

Bei Verben, die mit –ch, -sh, -o enden, fügen wir –es hinzu.

do – does watch – watches

Achtung: have – has

Die Negativform bilden wir mit don’t + Infinitiv oder doesn’t (bei she/he/it) +
Infinitiv.

Subjekt  Hilfsverb+not Infinitiv
I don’t live in Britain.
She doesn’t have a boyfriend.

Negativsätze

I don’t

He/She/It doesn’t live in a house.

You/We/They don’t

Um Fragen zu bilden, setzen wir do/does vor das Subjekt und das Infinitiv nach
dem Subjekt des Satzes.

Hilfsverb Subjekt Infinitiv
Do you speak English?
Does he listen to music?

Wir können auf diese Fragen 
mit Kurzantworten reagieren.

Do you speak English? 
Yes, I do.
Does he have a big family?
No, he doesn’t.

Fragewörter
What, where, when, who, why 
und how sind Fragewörter.
Wir setzen sie an den Anfang einer Frage.

How are you?
Where are you from?
What is his name?
Who does he live with?
Why does he live at home?

Possessive ’s
Wir verwenden ’s, um Besitz anzuzeigen.

John’s cousin
my son’s bedroom

Wenn das Wort bereits mit einem –s endet, 
fügen wir ein ’ nach dem -s hinzu.

His parents’ house. The babies’ rooms.

Nicht the room of my son, the house of his parents.
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Prepositions of place

in on at

Andere Präpositionen des Ortes sind:

close to/near to far from

next to in front of

behind opposite

Präpositionen des Ortes stehen immer vor einem Substantiv.

in London close to the school behind the market

I live close to/near to the city centre. 
I live far from the city centre.
They live next to my house.
Her house is in front of the school. 
There’s a big garden behind the house.
The flat is opposite the hospital.

I work at home.
Achtung: Nicht I work in home

There is/there are

Positive Aussagesätze

There
is a tennis court.

are three kitchens.

Negative Aussagesätze

There
isn’t a restaurant.

aren’t any public telephones.

Fragen und Kurzantworten

Is a bathroom?
Yes, there is.

there
No, there isn’t.

Are any offices?
Yes, there are.
No, there aren’t.

Wir verwenden auch How many, um Fragen zu stellen:

How many bedrooms are there? There are 32 bedrooms. 

A, an, some & any
a/an
Wir verwenden a/an mit Substantiven im Singular.

I have a desk in my room.

some
Wir verwenden some mit Substantiven im Plural in positiven Aussagesätzen.

There are some lamps here.

any
Wir verwenden any mit Substantiven im Plural in Fragen und in negativen
Aussagesätzen.

Do you have any curtains?
There aren’t any boys here.

Language reference 3
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Präpositionen der Zeit in, at, on (Prepositions of time)

Wir verwenden die Präpositionen in, on und at, um über Zeit zu sprechen.
in + Monat, Jahr, Morgen/Nachmittag/Abend

in March, in the morning
on + Tag, Datum

on Monday, on January 16th 

at + Tageszeit; auch at night
at four o’clock

Wir verwenden at mit night, the weekend:

at night, at the weekend

Wir verwenden at mit einigen besonderen Feiertagen:

at Christmas, at Easter

Adverbs of frequency
Wir verwenden Adverbien der Häufigkeit, um auszudrücken, wie oft etwas
geschieht oder gemacht wird.

How often do you do the housework?
I never do the housework.

always often usually sometimes hardly ever/rarely never

100% 0%

Adverbien der Häufigkeit stehen immer vor dem Verb (außer bei be).

He never makes the bed.

Bei be stehen Adverbien der Häufigkeit nach dem Verb.

He’s always on the phone.

Wir können auch solche Ausdrücke verwenden wie

every day/month/year
once a week/month/year

Diese Ausdrücke stehen entweder am Anfang oder am Ende eines Satzes.

I make the bed every morning.
Once a year he washes the clothes.

Can ist ein modales Hilfsverb

• In einem Satz „hilft" es dem Hauptverb.

• Das Hauptverb steht im Infinitiv ohne to.

• Can bleibt gleich für alle Formen und Personen.

• Die Negativform wird mit not (n’t) gebildet.

• In Fragen steht can vor dem Subjekt und das Infinitiv nach dem Subjekt des
Satzes.

Positive Aussagesätze

I
You
He/She/It can speak another language.
We
They

Negative Aussagesätze

I
You
He/She/It can’t speak another language.
We
They

I can speak French. I can’t understand.
Achtung Nicht: I can to speak French. Achtung: Nicht  I don’t can understand.

Fragen und Kurzantworten

I
you

Can he/she/it repeat that, please?
we
they

Yes,
I

can.you
he/she/it

No,
we
they

can’t.

Language reference 4
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Language reference 5
Can you hear me?
Achtung: Nicht  Do you can hear me?

Can wird für unterschiedliche Zwecke verwendet.
Um über Fähigkeiten zu sprechen:

I can speak English.

Um nach Erlaubnis zu bitten:

Can I use your phone?

Past simple: was/ were
Die past simple Form von be ist was/were.

I was in Canada.
We weren’t in a lovely hotel.

Positive und negative Aussagesätze

I was
He/She/It wasn’t

You
were

on holiday.

We
weren’t

They

Kurzantworten

I was.

Yes, he/she/it wasn’t.

No,
you/we/they

were.
weren’t.

Past simple – regular verbs
Bei den meisten regelmäßigen Verben fügen wir -ed hinzu, um das past
simple zu bilden.

He closed the door.
He walked to work.
He started work at nine o’clock.

Um negative Sätze bilden, verwenden wir das Hilfsverb did mit not (didn’t)
zusammen mit dem Infinitiv.

Negative Aussagesätze

I
You
She/He/It didn’t visit the museum.
We
They

Um Fragen zu bilden, verwenden wir das Hilfsverb did.  Wir setzen das
Hilfsverb vor das Subjekt und das Infinitiv nach dem Subjekt des Satzes.

Fragen

I
you

Did she/he/it remember the passports?
we
they

Fragen

Was
I
He/She/It

you in Toronto?
Were we

they

Positive Aussagesätze

I
You
He/She/It packed our bags.
We
They
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Past simple – irregular verbs
Viele der am häufigsten gebrauchten Verben haben unregelmäßige
Vergangenheitsformen:

eat – ate go – went make – made see – saw
have – had

Positive Aussagesätze

I
You
He/She/It went to the party.
We
They

Negative Formen und Fragen werden genau so gebildet wie bei den

Ausdrücke mit past simple und ago

Wir verwenden folgende Ausdrücke mit dem past simple.

yesterday/last night/week/Saturday/month/year

Sie stehen entweder am Anfang oder am Ende eines Satzes.

I saw a film last night.
Yesterday I had English class.

Wir verwenden auch Zeitangaben + ago mit dem past simple. Solche Ausdrücke
stehen meistens am Ende des Satzes.

I saw the film two weeks ago.
They booked their tickets six months ago.

I saw the film two weeks ago.
Achtung: Nicht I saw the film ago two weeks.

I read this book last night.
Achtung: Nicht I read this book the last night.

Adverbs of manner
Solche Adverbien verwenden wir, um auszudrücken, wie etwas geschieht oder
wie wir etwas machen.

Bill Clinton cried quietly.
The football team played well.

Adverbien der Art und Weise stehen meistens am Ende des Satzes.
Um ein solches Adverb zu bilden, fügen wir meistens -ly zum Adjektiv hinzu

quiet – quietly slow – slowly bad – badly

Sollte das Adjektiv bereits mit –y enden, ändern wir das y in ein -ily.

easy – easily noisy – noisily

Einige Adverbien ändern sich nicht.

late – late fast – fast hard – hard early – early

Die Adverbform von good ist well.

They are good players. They play well.

Language reference 6
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Countable & uncountable nouns
Substantive können entweder zählbar oder unzählbar sein a lot (of) / lots (of)

some

not much (mit unzählbaren Substantiven)
not many (mit zählbaren Substantiven)

He has lots of friends.
They don’t make much money.

Too
too + Adjektiv bedeutet "mehr als wir wollen".

It’s too spicy.

too+ Adjektiv und very + Adjektiv haben unterschiedliche Bedeutungen.
The tea was too hot. I couldn’t drink it. 
The tea was very hot, but I could drink it.

How much/ how many
Wir verwenden how much & how many, um nach Mengen zu fragen.

How much + unzählbare Substantive
How much rice do people eat?

How many + zählbare Substantive
How many countries make rice?

Wir verwenden Wörter wie lots of, much, some, um über Mengen zu sprechen.
Diese Wörter stehen immer vor dem Substantiv.

Zählbare Substantive Unzählbare Substantive

• haben eine Mehrzahl • haben keine Mehrzahl, sie
This dish has five eggs. stehen immer im Singular

• brauchen a/an oder the im Singular I love fruit.
Can I have an orange? • brauchen kein a/an 

• werden mit some verwendet • werden mit some verwendet bei 
bei Pluralformen in positiven Sätzen Substantiven in positiven Sätzen
I’d like some carrots. She drank some water.

• werden mit any verwendet • werden mit any verwendet bei 
bei Pluralformen in Substantiven in negativen Sätzen 
negativen Sätzen und Fragen Don’t eat any bread.

Does it have any carrots in it? • im Wörterbuch werden  

• im Wörterbuch werden unzählbare Substantive 
zählbare Substantive (uncountable nouns) mit 
(countable nouns) U gekennzeichnet
mit einem C gekennzeichnet salt (n/U)
pen (n/C) 
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Verb + -ing
Nach  love, like, hate, don’t mind verwenden wir  die -ing Form des Verbs.

☺ ☺ I love
☺ I like
O I don’t mind + flying.
� I don’t like
� � I hate

Schreibweise
Die –ing Form kann manchmal die Schreibweise des Verbs verändern.

Die meisten Infinitive   + -ing fly – flying talk – talking go – going

Infinitive, die mit ‘e’ enden = e  streichen + -ing arrive – arriving
hate – hating 

Infinitive, die mit einem Vokal + Konsonanten enden  =  Konsonanten
verdoppeln + -ing

sit – sitting run – running

Verlaufsform des Präsens (Present continuous)
Wir verwenden das present continuous, um über Dinge zu sprechen, die gerade
jetzt passieren.

Um das present continuous zu bilden, verwenden wir das Hilfsverb be im
Präsens zusammen mit der -ing Form des Hauptverbs.

Positive Aussagesätze

Vollform Kurzform

I am I’m
You are You’re
He/She/It is working. He’s/She’s/It’s working.
We are We’re
They are They’re

Negative Aussagesätze

Vollform Kurzform

I am I’m not
You are You aren’t
He/She/It is not working. He/She/It isn’t working.
We are We aren’t
They are They aren’t

Fragen

Am I
Are you
Is he/she/it working?
Are we
Are they

Present simple vs present continuous

Wir verwenden das present simple, um zu beschreiben, was wir regelmäbig
machen.

He leaves work at six o’clock.

Diese Ausdrücke werden normalweise mit dem present simple verwendet:

every day/month/year/afternoon
once a week/month/year
always/sometimes/hardly ever/often

Wir verwenden das present continuous, um zu beschreiben, was wir gerade im
Augenblick machen.

He’s leaving work at 5:30 today.

Diese Ausdrücke werden normalerweise mit dem present continuous verwendet:

at the moment
now
right now
today

Nicht vergessen:

Bei Fragen und Negativsätzen im simple present verwenden wir das Hilfsverb

Language reference 8
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Language reference 9
should / shouldn’t
Should ist ein modales Hilfsverb.  Das heißt:

• Es wird mit einem Infinitiv ohne to verwendet

• Die Form bleibt bei allen Personen immer gleich.

• Die Negativform wird mit not (n’t) gebildet.

• Um eine Frage zu bilden, setzen wir should vor das Subjekt und das Infinitiv
nach dem Subjekt des Satzes.

Wir verwenden should, um Ratschläge zu geben.

You should say hello when you meet someone for the first time.

Positive Aussagen I/You/He/She/It/We/They should wear a tie.

Negative Aussagen I/You/He/She/It/We/They shouldn’t wear a tie.

Fragen Should I/you/he/she/it/we/they wear a tie?

Kurzanworten Yes, I/you/he/she/it/we/they should.

No, I/you/he/she/it/we/they shouldn’t.

Achtung: Keine to nach should.

You should arrive early.
Nicht You should to arrive early.

Imperatives
Die Befehlsform eines Verbs oder das Imperativ ist identisch mit dem Infinitiv ohne to.
Wir verwenden das Imperativ, um Befehle und Anweisungen zu erteilen.

Drink water.
Sit straight.

Um negative Imperativformen zu bilden, verwenden wir don’t + verb.

Don’t sit for a long time.
Don’t move.

Wir verwenden das Imperativ auch:

•
•

Whose & possessive
Um nach dem Besitzer von etwas zu fragen, verwenden wir das Fragewort whose.
Whose kann zusammen mit einem Substantiv, aber auch getrent verwendet
werden.

Whose money is that? 
Whose is that money? 

Um das Substantiv bei der Antwort nicht wiederholen zu müssen, können wir ein
Possessivpronomen verwenden.

Besitzanzeigendes Possessivpronomen 
Adjektiv

It’s my book. It’s mine.
It’s your book. It’s yours.
It’s his book. It’s his.
It’s her book. It’s hers.
It’s our book. It’s ours.
It’s their book. It’s theirs.

Achtung: Ein Possessivpronomen darf nicht zusammen mit einem Substantiv
verwendet werden.

It’s mine.
Nicht It’s mine book.
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have got

Have got hat die gleiche Bedeutung wie have und wird in gesprochenem
Englisch sehr häufig verwendet.

Wir verwenden have got, wenn wir sprechen möchten

• über Besitz.
I’ve got a car.

• über Beziehungen.
I’ve got two brothers and sisters.

• über Zustände.
I’ve got a headache.

Positive Aussagesätze

I/You/We/They
have got
‘ve got

a headache.

He/She/It
has got
‘s got

Negative Aussagesätze

I/You/We/They haven’t got
a headache.

He/She/It hasn’t got

Fragen

Have you/I/we/they
got a headache?

Has he/she/it

Kurzantworten

Yes,
you/I/we/they have.

he/she/it has.

No,
you/I/we/they haven’t.

he/she/it hasn’t.

Die einfache Vergangenheitsform von have got ist had.

Language Reference 9
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Must/musn’t/needn’t
Must ist ein modales Hilfsverb. Das heißt:

• Es wird mit einem Infinitiv ohne to verwendet.

• Die Form bleibt bei allen Personen gleich.

• Die Negativform wird mit not (n’t) gebildet.

• Um eine Frage zu bilden, setzen wir must vor das Subjekt und das Infinitiv
nach dem Subjekt dem Satzes. 

Must, mustn’t, needn’t

I must
You
He/She/It mustn’t wear shoes in this place.
We must not
They needn’t

Wir verwenden must, um über Verpflichtungen zu sprechen

Must hat zwei mögliche Negativformen.

Mustn’t (must not) bedeutet  don’t do this.
Needn’t (need not) bedeutet  this isn’t necessary.

We can also say don’t/doesn’t need to = needn’t.

Wir können manchmal (aber micht sehr oft) Fragen mit must bilden.

Must I bring a pen to the exam?

Comparatives
Wir verwenden die Komparativform eines Adjektivs, um zwei Leute oder Dinge
miteinander zu vergleichen.

The capital is more expensive than my town.

Dabei verwenden wir  than und nicht that.

The city is bigger than the town.
Not The city is bigger that the town.

Bei kurzen Adjektiven (mit einer Silbe) fügen wir -er hinzu.  

old older small smaller

Wenn das Adjektiv mit einem Konsonanten + Vokal + Konsonanten endet,
verdoppeln wir den Konsonanten und fügen -er hinzu.

big bigger

Bei längeren Adjektiven (mehrsilbig) verwenden wir das Wort more +Adjektiv.

expensive more expensive dangerous more dangerous

Adjektive, die mit -y enden, verlieren das -y und werden mit  -ier ergänzt.

noisy noisier

Good und bad sind unregelmäßige Adjektive.

good better bad worse

Superlatives
Wir verwenden die Superlativform eines Adjektivs, um mehr als zwei Leute oder Dinge
miteinander zu vergleichen.

It’s the most dangerous part of the city.
It’s the highest mountain.

Mit Superlativformen verwenden wir den Artikel the.

He is the best player.
Nicht  He is best player.

Bei den meisten kurzen Adjektiven (mit einer Silbe) fügen wir -est It hinzu..

short the shortest
cheap the cheapest
nice the nicest

Wenn das Adjektiv mit einem Konsonanten + Vokal + Konsonanten endet,
verdoppeln wir den Konsonanten und fügen -es. hinzu

big the biggest hot the hottest

Bei längeren Adjektiven (mehrsilbig) verwenden wir  the most +adjective.

expensive the most expensive popular the most popular

Adjektive, die mit -y enden, verlieren das  -y und werden mit  -iest ergänzt.

happy the happiest funny the funniest

Good und bad sind unregelmäßige Adjektive.

good – the best bad – the worst

Language reference 10
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Language reference 11
Question review
When, where, what, how, who und why sind alle Fragewörter.

Wie verwenden sie, um den Anfang einer Frage zu bilden.
Folgende Regeln sind wichtig, wenn wir im Englischen Fragen bilden wollen.
Wir bilden eine Frage beim Verb be, indem wir das Verb vor das Subjekt setzen.

Verb Subjekt
Are you a doctor?

Where were you yesterday?

Bei anderen Verben im present simple und past simple bilden wir Fragen mit den
Hilfsverben (do/does/did) und dem Infinitiv. 
Wir setzen das Hilfsverb vor das Subjekt und das Infinitiv nach dem Subjekt des
Satzes.

Hilfsverb Subjekt Infinitiv
Do you work at night?

When did you finish today?

Andere Verbformen (present continuous, can, should) haben bereits ein Hilfsverb
und ein Hauptverb.
Wir setzen das Hilfsverb vor das Subjekt und das Infinitiv nach dem Subjekt des
Satzes.

Hilfsverb Subjekt Infinitiv
Can you speak English?

What should he do?

Will / won’t
Wir verwenden will, um etwas für die Zukunft vorauszusagen.

Will ist ein modales Hilfsverb. Das heißt:

• Es wird von einem Infinitiv ohne to begleitet.

• Bei allen Personen bleibt die Form immer gleich.

• Die Negativform wird mit not (n’t) gebildet.

• Um Fragen zu bilden, setzen wir will vor das Subjekt und das Infinitiv nach
dem Subjekt des Satzes.

Positive und negative Aussagen

I will
You ’ll
He/She/It have a job in ten years.
We

won’t

They

Fragen und Kurzantworten

I I
you you
he

have a job in Yes,
he

will
Will she

ten years? No,
she

won’t.
it it
we we
they they

Going to future
Wir verwenden be + going to + Verb, um über Pläne für die Zukunft zu sprechen.

She’s going to go to the gym next year.

Positive Aussagesätze

Vollform Kurzform

I am I’m
You are vote in You’re

do 
He/She/It is going to the next He’s/She’s/It’s going to

exercise.
We are election. We’re
They are They’re

Negative Aussagesätze

Vollform Kurzform

I am I’m not
You are learn You aren’t learn
He/She/It is not

going
another He/She/It isn’t going to another

We are
to

language. We aren’t language.
They are They aren’t

Fragen und Kurzantworten

Am I Yes, I am.
Are you No, I’m not.
Is he/she/it going to visit England? Yes, he/she/it is.
Are we No, he/she/it isn’t.
Are they Yes, you/they/we are.

No, you/they/we aren’t.
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?

Kurzantworten

I have.
you have.

Yes, he/she/it has.
we have.
they have.

I haven’t.
you haven’t.

No, he/she/it hasn’t.
we haven’t.
they haven’t.

Present perfect
Wir verwenden das present perfect, um über Dinge und Ereignisse zu sprechen, die
in der Vergangenheit passiert sind, ohne einen spezifischen Zeitpunkt zu nennen.

Wir bilden das present perfect mit dem Hilfsverb have/has + Partizip Perfekt.

He has won an award.
They have made 35 albums.

now

He’s been to London.

Im Englischen gibt es zwei Arten von Partizip Perfekt:

• Regelmäßige Form (endet mit -ed) visited, received, opened

• Unregelmäßige Form (endere Schrelbweise) spoken, eaten, met

Positive Aussagen

Vollform Kurzform

I have I’ve
You have You’ve
He has

been to
He’s

been to
She has

London.
She’s

London.
It has It’s
We have We’ve
They have They’ve

Negative Aussagen

I haven’t
You haven’t
He hasn’t
She hasn’t (ever) won an award.
It hasn’t
We haven’t
They haven’t

In negativen Sätzen können wir not + ever verwenden.

I haven’t ever won an award.

Wir können auch never verwenden, um einen negativen Satz zu bilden. 
Never = not ever.

I have never won an award.
I have never heard him speak.

Wir verwenden das present perfect auch, um nach Erfahrungen in der
Vergangenheit zu fragen. In Fragen können wir das Wort ever verwenden. Ever
bedeutet in der Regel ‘in Ihrem Leben’.

Fragen 

Have I
Have you
Has he

(ever) spoken in public?
Has she
Have we
Have they

Verbformen: Zusammenfassung 

Zeitform Positive Aussage Negative Aussage Frage Kurzantwort Verwendung

Present I live He doesn’t Do you like Yes, I do. routines
simple in Spain. work here. chocolate? No, they don’t. habits

facts
Past They took We didn’t Did you study Yes, he did. events in
simple the bus. go to class. for the exam? No, I didn’t. the past

Present He is working I’m not working Are they Yes, they are. actions 
continuous at home. at the moment. playing football? No, he isn’t. happening now

Future We are going He isn’t going to Are you Yes, I am. future plans
(going to) to see a film. have a holiday. going to stop? No, they aren’t.

Future He will They won’t Will I work Yes, you will. future 
(will) get married. have a job. at home? No, we won’t. predictions

Present They’ve sung She hasn’t Have you ever Yes, I have. experiences
perfect in many won a spoken in No, I haven’t unspecified past

countries. Grammy Award. public?
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